


Fort Carroll (BA-451)

Name of Property

Baltimore County, MD

County and State

5. Classification

Ownership of Property

(Check as many boxes as apply)

Category of Property
(Check only one box)

X private ] building(s)

[J public-local [] district

] public-State O] site

] public-Federal X structure
[] object

Name of related multiple property listing
(Enter “N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing)

N/A

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count)

Contributing Noncontributing
buildings
sites
2 structures
objects
2 0 Total

number of contributing resources previously
listed in the National Register

0

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

DEFENSE: fortification VACANT
NAVIGATION: lighthouse

7. Description

Architectural Classification Materials

(Enter categories from instructions)

OTHER: Third System Seacoast Defense System

Narrative Description

(Enter categories from instructions)

foundation Stone, Brick
walls Stone. Brick

roof Stone, Brick
other

(Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets)
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Description Summary:

Fort Carroll occupies a 3.45 acre artificial island in the middle of the Patapsco River, just south of Baltimore,
Maryland. Hexagonal in plan, the exterior is constructed of large granite blocks with interior spaces defined by
brick masonry and concrete infill. The fort was built in 1848 and remained in military use into the early 20"
century. A lighthouse was constructed in 1854 and replaced with the present square frame structure in 1898.

General Description:

Fort Carroll is hexagonal in plan. Each side/face is 246 feet long. There is a capped pipe, 2” inches in
diameter, driven in the ground that marks the center of the Fort and served as the bench mark for a significant
amount of the dredging work. Over the years the pipe has become magnetized. The physical location of the
Fort is near mid channel in the Patapsco River in Maryland at Sollers Point Flats, approximately 4.5 miles from
Ft. McHenry and seven to eight miles from the center of Baltimore. There is deep channel that passes the Fort
between the Fort and Hawkins Point that is only a mile distant.

The artificial island was constructed with the aid of a diving bell. Huge piles were driven into water 12 to 15
feet deep and a wooden grillage placed on top. The grillage was then covered with massive stones and mud fill
from the bed of the river. The walls are faced with granite and filled with concrete. The original design of Fort
Carroll was very much of the same kind as Fort Sumter in Charleston, SC harbor. The Fort was constructed
with an artesian well in the center of the Fort, supplying water fit for use in case of emergency.

The Fort’s design is attributed to then-Brevet Colonel Robert E. Lee. It was named for Charles Carroll of
Carrollton, a signer of the Declaration of Independence. It was considered at the time by General William P.
Craighill “that there was never a finer piece of engineering work of its kind.” Construction of the fort began in
1848, under Brevet Col. Robert E. Lee's supervision, by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and continued
mainly by Captain Henry Brewerton and to some extent by Foster and Whiting. Fort Carroll was important for
the defense of Baltimore: before the fort was created, the only military defensive structure between Baltimore
and the Chesapeake Bay was Fort McHenry.

In addition, a lighthouse was built on the ramparts in 1854 to aid navigation into Baltimore Harbor. The
original lighthouse was replaced in 1898. The light was automated in 1920 and deactivated in 1945.

The government abandoned the fort as a military post in 1921, and the island was declared excess property in
1923. At that time the War Department took no immediate steps to sell the land. In May 1958, a Baltimore
attorney purchased the island but development plans never materialized. The fort now is available for
redevelopment in cooperation with owners of the property.
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The fort is accessible only by boat, and access is made difficult by the deterioration of the
original landing and drawbridge, and further complicated by the fact that the island has been
colonized by numerous species of migratory birds. Additional descriptive information is
provided in the attached addendum entitled “Fort Carroll: Condition Description.” This material
was provided by Beverly Eisenberg, AIA, who has made numerous visits to the fort as recently
as Spring 2014. Her direct observation of the condition of the structure indicates that the
property retains a high degree of integrity, despite years of disuse.
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Index to Photographs
The following information applies to all photographs which accompany this documentation:

Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties (MIHP) Number: BA-451
Name of Property: Fort Carroll

Location: Baltimore County, Maryland

Photographer: Beverly Eisenberg

Location of original digital files; MD SHPO

Photo captions:

MD_BaltimoreCounty FortCarroll_0001.tif
Pier and entrance, view from northeast, March 2014

MD_BaltimoreCounty FortCarroll 0002.tif
Distant view from east, March 2014

MD_BaltimoreCounty FortCarroll 0003.tif
Front 2 approach, June 2011

MD_BaltimoreCounty FortCarroll _0004.tif
Front 2 approach, June 2011

MD_BaltimoreCounty FortCarroll 0005.tif
Squad room, Front 2 barracks interior, June 2011

MD_BaltimoreCounty FortCarroll _0006.tif
Casemates, interior brickwork, June 2011

MD_BaltimoreCounty FortCarroll 0007.tif
Casemates, interior brickwork, June 2011

MD BaltimoreCounty FortCarroll 0008.tif
Casemates, interior brickwork, June 2011
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MD_BaltimoreCounty FortCarroll 0009.tif
Casemates, interior brickwork, June 2011

MD_BaltimoreCounty_FortCarroll_0010.tif
Staircase, square type from above, April 2014

MD_BaltimoreCounty FortCarroll _0011.tif
Staircase, square type from below, April 2014

MD_BaltimoreCounty_FortCarroll_0012.tif
Gun emplacement, Towson Battery, Front 5, June 2011

MD_BaltimoreCounty FortCarroll 0013.tif
Front 5 interior at parade, June 2011

MD_BaltimoreCounty FortCarroll 0014.tif
Lighthouse, June 2011

MD_BaltimoreCounty FortCarroll 0015.tif
View across upper deck, June 2011
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FORT CARROLL: Condition Description Beverly Eisenberg, AIA
January 31, 2015

Fort Carroll, a single tier third system fort, on a man-made 3.4 acre island, ” is one of the best preserved
on the Eastern Seaboard” as was stated by Headland in a 1940 article “Fort Carroll: A Ready Made
Treasure Island, found in the files of the Maryland Historical Society. “(1)

Despite years of disuse, with the micro-climate of the interior parade creating a protected environment,
the solid exterior walls and parade enclosure walls remain in a rehabilitative condition.

“The site was laid off in 1847, and Robert E. Lee, then a Brevet Colonel of Engineers for meritorious
service in the Mexican War, was called upon to take charge of construction, a post that he retained until
the War Department retired him to take charge of the Superintendence at West Point in 1852.

The location selected for the fort was on a shoal in the middle of the Patapsco River, between Soller's
Point and Hawkin's Point. Piles were sunk beneath the water as far as they would go, the water being 12
to 15 feet deep at this point, and a wooden grillage placed on top of the piling. Then, with the aid of
company of men brought over from Fort McHenry to hold routine practice with the guns, and after the
closing of the war, this practice was discontinued. (1)

This condition description, through historic drawings and several articles, provides technical
documentation, and through photographs of field observations of various parts of Fort Carroll, provide
observational documentation for the parts of the fort described:

the Foundation and Fort Walls

the Pier, Sallyport and Squadroom

the Casemates

the Stairwells

the Gun Batteries and Structure Below
the Lighthouse

Mmoo

A detailed description of Fort Carroll’'s construction in stages is outlined in Chapter 3, Structures for
Defense: Fort Carroll, Fort McHenry and the Civil War , from a 1974 book “The Mid-Atlantic Englneers A
History of the Baltimore District US Army Corps of Englneers

“In his report of 1 October 1851, Robert E. Lee noted that the wharves on all fronts were nearly
complete. Three hundred thirty-two foundation piles for the seawall on Front 1 had been driven and
sawed off fifteen feet below low water level and were ready for masonry. The foundation for the sea wall
on Front 1 had been graded and leveled, and three courses of stone laid. Lee procured enough stone to
make the wall fourteen feet high, despite funding limitations.” (2)

From a visual inspection in spring 2014, the foundation of Fort Carroll appears stable. There is no
visual evidence of settlement, that suggests that the structure may be compromised. It is constructed
on an extensive gridded platform bearing on tarred wood pilings driven up to 45 feet into Sollers Point
Flats, as per the attached layout drawing. The exterior walls are of granite and reinforced concrete
with a fanned out perimeter foundation below the water line.
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Images in the above document, in order of appearance. All photographs were taken by Beverly A.
Eisenberg, AlA, on dates indicated, and remain in her personal collection. Drawings are held at the
National Archives. Photos and drawings marked with an asterisk are also appended as larger-size

prints.
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15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.

22.

Condition of Foundation and Grillage — Condition of Work; 9/1851 (source: National Archives)
Scarp Wall / Grillage Section — Condition of Work; 6/1857 (source: National Archives)

Front 2 Approach; June 2011*

Drawbridge Details (source: National Archives)*

Front 2 Approach from East; June 2011*

Front 2 Entrance from East; June 2011

Front 2 Barracks Interior—Squad Room; June 2011*

Pipes and Sewers Plan (source: National Archives)*

Casemates Front 3; April 2014

. Casemates at Parade; April 2014*

. Casemates (4 views); June 2011*

. Stairwell — 2 views - (Square Type, typical on both ends of Front 2); June 2011*

. Stairwell — 2 views — (Round Type; spiral typical on both ends of Front 4); April 2014

. Plan and Sections of Elevator Shafts for two-12” emplacements; January 10, 1902 (source:

National Archives)*

Gun emplacement, Towson Battery Front 5; June 2011*

Armament and Magazines; December 31, 1899 (source: National Archives)*
Front 5 Interior at Parade; June 2011%

Lighthouse View from Front 4; June 2011

Lighthouse HABS Elevations, 1965 (source: National Archives)*

Lighthouse; April 2014

Lighthouse; June 2011*

View of Upper Deck — Above Fronts; June 2011*



Addendum, drawing no. 4, drawbridge details

Fort Carroll (BA—4§'1), Baltimore County, Maryland —-
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Fort Carroll (BA-4p1), Baltimore County, Maryland -- Addendum, Drawing no. 8, pipes and sewers
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Fort Carroll (BA-4F1), Baltimore County, Maryland -- Addendum, Drawing no. 14, 1902
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Fort Carroll (BA-461), Baltimore
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Drawing no. 16, 1899
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Fort Carroll (BA-4§1), Baltimore County, Maryland -- Addendum, Drawing no. 19, 1965
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Fort Carroll (BA-451)
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Baltimore County, MD

County and State

8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria
(Mark “x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property for
National Register listing)

X A

X C

0D

Property is associated with events that have made a
significant contribution to the broad pattern of our
history.

Property associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

Property embodies the distinctive characteristics of a
type, period, or method of construction or represents
the work of a master, or possesses high artistic values,
or represents a significant and distinguishable entity
whose components lack individual distinction.

Property has yielded, or is likely to yield, information
important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations
(Mark “x”" in all the boxes that apply)

Property is:

L1 A owned by a religious institution or used for religious
purposes.

] B removed from its original location.

[ C a birthplace or grave.

[0 D acemetery.

[ E areconstructed building, object, or structure.

[ F acommemorative property.

[J G less than 50 years of age or achieved significance

within the past 50 years.

Narrative Statement of Significance
(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets)See Continuation Sheet

Area of Significance
(Enter categories from instructions)

Military

Period of Significance

1848-1921

Significant Dates

1848

Significant Person

Cultural Affiliation

N/A

Architect/Builder

General Joseph Gilbert Totten, Chief Engineer, U. S. Army

9. Major Bibliographical References

Bibliography

(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets)

Previous documentation on files (NPS):

O

O Oood

preliminary determination of individual listing (36
CFR 67) has been requested
previously listed in the National Register

previously determined eligible by the National Register

designated a National Historic Landmark

recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey

#

recorded by Historic American Engineering Record
#

Primary location of additional data:

State Historic Preservation Office
Other State agency

Federal agency

Local government

University

Other

Name of repository:

ooOooon
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Summary Statement of Significance:

Fort Carroll is significant under Criterion A for its association with the development of military
defenses in the 19" century. Its construction was part of the “Third System” program of military
fortifications intended to protect the nation’s most vulnerable points. The Fort derives additional
significance under Criterion C as an example of the type of defensive structure considered “state
of the art” by the U. S. Army Corps of Engineers in the mid-19" century. The period of
significance extends from 1848, when construction was initiated, to 1921, when the fort was
abandoned by the Army.

Resource History and Historic Context:

Fort Carroll is a 3.45 acre artificial island and abandoned fort in the middle of the Patapsco
River, just south of Baltimore, Maryland and within view and waters off Fort McHenry. It is
named for Charles Carroll of Carrollton (1737-1832), a signer of the Declaration of
Independence.

As Baltimore City grew it became necessary to provide defenses farther down the Patapsco River
from Baltimore and Fort McHenry toward the Chesapeake Bay. In 1847, the State of Maryland
gave permission to the United States War Department to construct a fort in the shallow water of
Soller’s Point Flats to protect the City of Baltimore. Fort Carroll was important for the defense
of Baltimore because it was the best location in the river for a work of defense for heavy guns.
One of its six faces looks right down the channel which large ships must navigate and the fire of
the fort’s artillery from that face would rake the ships from stem to stern. Prior to the
construction of Fort Carroll, Fort McHenry was the only military defensive structure between
Baltimore and the Chesapeake Bay. Fort Carroll was part of the “Permanent System” or Third
System construction program which aimed to defend America’s most important ports.

The Fort was built because of ordinance advances after the 1814 British bombardment of Fort
McHenry which gave ships the ability to lob shells into Baltimore from beyond the range of Fort
McHenry’s guns. Fort Carroll was designed by then-Brevet Colonel Robert E. Lee during the
tenure of General Joseph Gilbert Totten as Chief of the United States Corps of Engineers. Three
tiers were planned, but the fort was not completed beyond the first tier.

In 1847 Major Cornelius A. Ogden of the United States Corps of Engineers asked for the
appropriation to locate the Fort on Soller’s Flats between Sparrows Point and Hawkins Point.
Lee supervised the construction until 1852, when he accepted the post of Superintendent of the
United States Military Academy at West Point. Lee was succeeded by Capt. Henry Brewerton.
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Lee set to work in earnest to build the Fort, a casemated structure on Sollers Point Flats, in the
middle of the Patapsco River. He pushed the construction of a scow, a pile driver, a lighter, a
huge crane, a machine designed for sawing off the foundation piles at uniform depth, a dredge
for leveling the shoal, workshops, a storehouse, and a diving bell. The dredge and special saw
were operated by the steam engine of the pile driver. Preparatory wharves (Coffer dams) were
built around the Fort during the construction period. Piles were driven for the sea wall. Colonel
Lee wrote on August 3, 1851, “We have been laying stones by means of a diving bell.”

The historic record indicates that Lee personally supervised each step of the work. It was his
custom each day to employ transportation from his Baltimore home, located at Madison Avenue
near Biddle Street now numbered 908, to the harbor, there taking a boat sent up from the fort to
meet him. The record continues to describe “that the good farmer at Soller’s Point served an
excellent country dinner.” Lee’s son, in his memoirs of his father, recalls being allowed to
accompany him on occasions remaining in wait at the farmhouse.

On orders from Lee, a capped pipe about 2” in diameter was driven into the ground to mark the
center of the Fort and serves as the benchmark for the substantial amount of project dredging
work. Over the years the pipe has become magnetized.

Fort Carroll would be the last engineering work that Lee would do for the United States.

Captain Henry Brewerton had charge during the period of 1861 to 1864. Following Captain
Brewerton as engineers overseeing the fort were Capt. J. G. Foster, Lt. William H. C. Whiting,
and Major (later Colonel) William P. Craighill in 1871.

In 1853 a light house was built on the ramparts to aid navigation into Baltimore Harbor. In 1898
a new light house was built which is still evident today. The light house was automated in 1920
and ceased operations before 1945.

The original design called for Fort Carroll to be armed with some 225 cannon on three levels.
However, in April 1861 at the start of the Civil War, the walls of the fort were still less than the
planned height of thirty feet. Five gun plants were available for placement but only two were
armed. Despite the lack of situational readiness the Army still placed thirty cannon at the fort
and manned it throughout the Civil War. Due to torrential rains in 1864 that flooded the fort’s
magazines, the Army was forced to move all the powder and ammunition to Fort McHenry.

While Fort Carroll was in the charge of Colonel Craighill after 1871 the superior authorities had
decided not to build the Fort higher in masonry. During this period, Col. Craighill was also
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engaged in deepening and widening the ship channel from which a large amount of earth and
sand was being removed. The ship channel would become known as the Brewerton channel after
Lt./Capt. Brewerton. Col. Craighill proposed to the Chief of Engineers of the Army at that time
to cover the masonry walls with the excess dredging material to a proper thickness, converting
the Fort into an earthwork and preparing it to receive a battery of the heaviest guns on the top.

He recalled, “Congress at the time was not in the mood for projects involving works of defense,
resulting in Fort Carroll remaining an eyesore and object of derision of the time for many years
to passersby who were not aware of its possibilities.” This was not an unusual proposal for
Craighill to present given that during the Civil War an earthwork was built on Federal Hill and
another called Fort Marshall on the high ground opposite Fort McHenry and overlooking it.

Col. Craighill would later provide the impetus for adding to the proper system of defense for
Baltimore by having the United States acquire Hawkins Point and North Point for batteries.
Additional sites for fortifications were secured at Portland, Boston, Newport, New York,
Hampton Roads, Wilmington, Charleston, Savannah, Key West, Pensacola, all along the Pacific
Coast at important points from San Diego, near the Mexican Border, to the British at Straits of
Fuca.

When the United States entered into the Spanish American War in 1898, the Army again manned
the Fort’s batteries, which were by then completely obsolete. The Army therefore commenced
the construction of modern concrete gun placements following the designs of the Endicott Board.
The walls were raised and an earthwork rampart was built to accommodate the two 12” mounted
disappearing guns. The Army created three batteries: Battery Towson (two 12” barbette
disappearing carriage guns), Battery Heart (two 5” balanced pedestal-mount guns), and Battery
Augustin (two 3” balanced pedestal-mount guns). The new batteries were ready by September
1900 -- well after the end of the war. The batteries were named on March 30, 1903.

Upon installation of the new batteries, Fort Carroll was considered one of Baltimore’s strongest
means of defense. It was garrisoned by a detachment of the 39" Coast Artillery. Quarters for
officers were under construction during the period, after completion of which the Fort was a
regularly occupied military post. The Fort was never fully completed. Had the Fort been
completed with its three tiers of casements and barbette, as originally intended, its armament
would have consisted of three hundred and fifty guns.

Towson Battery was named in honor of U.S. Army Major General Nathan Towson. He served in
the War of 1812 and the Mexican War and died July 20, 1854 in Washington, DC. The Heart
Battery was named in honor of 2" U.S. Infantry Major Jonathan Heart. He served during the
Revolutionary War and died November 4, 1791 in action near Fort Recovery, Ohio. The third
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battery, Battery Augustin, was named in honor 24™ U.S. Infantry 2™ Lieutenant Joseph N.
Augustin Jr. who died July 2, 1898 of wounds received in the Battle of San Juan Hill.

After World War I started, the Army removed the guns from Battery Heart in 1917 and from
Battery Towson in 1918 to be repurposed. Also after World War I, the War Department gave the
Fortress to the Department of Commerce only to have it returned three years later. The Army
then offered it for sale to the highest bidder; there were no takers.

In 1921, the Army officially abandoned Fort Carroll and moved the remaining military
equipment to nearby Fort Howard. The War Department declared the island excess property in
1923, but did not immediately sell the land.

A variety of proposals were advanced for different uses of the island; these included a prison, as
well as one advanced in 1923 by then Baltimore Mayor William Broening to place an electric
“Welcome to Baltimore” sign on the island, accompanied by a statue of Lord Baltimore.

During World War II the Army used the fort as a firing range. Also during World War II, foreign
flag sailors used the island as a temporary home while their ships underwent fumigation and it
served as a checkpoint for vessels.

In 1958, the island was sold to a private party intending to put a casino on the island but
development plans never materialized. There have been several proposals since but none have
materialized.
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Fort Carroll (BA-451) Baltimore County, MD

Name of Property County and State

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property 3.45 acres Curtis Bay, MD USGS quad

UTM References
(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet)

118”369J164 43‘41839 3 L

Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing

N | 4 L |

[0 See continuation sheet
Verbal Boundary Description
(Describe the boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet)

Boundary Justification
(Explain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation sheet)

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitle Helen Rivas

Organization  Friends of Fort Carroll date October 2012
street & number  hhrivas@earthlink.net telephone NA
city ortown NA . state NA zip code NA

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed form:
Continuation Sheets
Maps
A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property’s location.
A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.
Photographs
Representative black and white photographs of the property.

Additional Items
(Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)

Property Owner

(Complete this item at the request of SHPO or FPO)

Name Fort Carroll LL.C
street & number 9 Gwynns Mill Court telephone NA
city ortown  Owings Mills state MD zip code 21117

Paperwork Red>uction Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate
properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain a
benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 et. seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Pubilic reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per response including the time for reviewing
instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect of
this form to the Chief, Administrative Services Division, National Park Service, P.O. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and the Office of
Management and Budget, Paperwork Reductions Project (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503.



NPS Form 10-900-a OMB Approval No. 1024-0018
(Expires 5-31-2012)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Fort Cartll
Continuation Sheet Name of Property
: Baltimore County, MD
Section _10 Page_1 County and State
Geographical Data

Verbal Boundary Description:

The nominated property, 3.45 acres, is described among the land records of Baltimore County,
Maryland in Liber 8560, Page 132.

Boundary Justification:

The boundary is coterminous with the perimeter of Fort Carroll at the mean low water line. It
encompasses the full extent of the historic resource.



NPS Form 10-900-a OMB Approval No. 1024-0018
(Expires 5-31-2012)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places pon
Continuation Sheet Name of Property

Baltimore County, MD

Section _ PHOTO Page _1 County and State

Index to Photographs
The following information applies to all photographs which accompany this documentation:

Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties (MIHP) Number: BA-451
Name of Property: Fort Carroll

Location: Baltimore County, Maryland

Photographer: Beverly Eisenberg

Date taken: March, 2014

Location of original digital files: MD SHPO

Photo captions:

MD_BaltimoreCounty_FortCarroll 0001.tif
Pier and entrance, view from northeast

MD_BaltimoreCounty FortCarroll 0002.tif
Distant view from east



















































UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
EVALUATION/RETURN SHEET

REQUESTED ACTION: NOMINATION

PROPERTY Fort Carroll
NAME :

MULTIPLE
NAME :

STATE & COUNTY: MARYLAND, Baltimore

DATE RECEIVED: 10/10/14 DATE OF PENDING LIST: 11/03/14
DATE OF 16TH DAY: 11/18/14 DATE OF 45TH DAY: 11/26/14
DATE OF WEEKLY LIST:

REFERENCE NUMBER: 14000955

REASONS FOR REVIEW:

APPEAL: N DATA PROBLEM: N LANDSCAPE: N LESS THAN 50 YEARS: N
OTHER: N PDIL: N PERIOD: N PROGRAM UNAPPROVED: N
REQUEST: Y SAMPLE: 'N SLR DRAFT: N NATIONAL: N

COMMENT WAIVER: N

ACCEPT - RETURN REJECT DATE

ABSTRACT/SUMMARY COMMENTS:

See. atkahal Retumn Sheet o) Alaiked Comménd .

RECOM. /CRITERJIA R(f](wr!/\
REVIEWER ﬁﬂ]éé 4@2{{&[) DISCIPLINE /7115725’/@,,\

TELEPHONE DATE___ | [,/ &@/ 214

DOCUMENTATION see attached comments Y/N see attached SLR Y/N

If a nomination is returned to the nominating authority, the
nomination is no longer under consideraticn by the NPS.



United States Department of the Interior

NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
1849 C Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20240

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Evaluation/Return Sheet

Property Name: Fort Carroll
MARYLAND, Baltimore County

Reference Number; 14000955

Reason for Return: The nomination is being returned for additional information. Section 7 of the
nomination form (Description) does not adequately describe the nominated property. Included
within the nominated area is the fort and a contributing lighthouse. Please provide additional
information describing the exterior and interior of the fort and the lighthouse. The only
photographs provided show the fort’s exterior. Please provide interior photographs of the fort if
available. ‘ '

Please note that the three boxes in Section 3 of the form are not checked (indicating if it is a
nomination, what the SHPO opinion is on eligibility, and the recommended level of significance).
Please provide this information.

it Al

Patrick Andrus, Historian

National Register of Historic Places
11/26/2014
patrick_andrus@nps.gov
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May 2, 2013

Mr. J. Rodney Little

Director, State Historic Preservation Officer
Maryland Historical Trust

100 Community Place

Crownsville, MD 21032-2023

STATE CLEARINGHOUSE RECOMMENDATION
State Application Identifier: MD20130318-0161
Applicant:  Maryland Historical Trust
Project Description: HISTORIC NOMINATION: Fort Carroll
Project Location: Baltimore City

Approving Authority: U.S. Department of the Interior DOI/NPS
CFDA Number: 15914

Recommendation: Consistent Including General Comment(s)

Dear Mr. Little:

In accordance with Presidential Executive Order 12372 and Code of Maryland Regulation 34.02.01.04-.06, the State
Clearinghouse has coordinated the intergovernmental review of the referenced project. This letter constitutes the State
process review and recommendation. This recommendation is valid for a period of three years from the date of this letter.

Review comments were requested from the Maryland Department(s) of Natural Resources, Transportation; Baltimore
City: and the Maryland Department of Planning.

The Maryland Department(s) of Natural Resources, and Transportation; Baltimore City; and the Maryland Department of
Planning found this project to be consistent with their plans, programs, and objectives.

The Department of Transportation stated that "as far as can be determined at this time, the subject has no unacceptable
impacts on their plans or programs."

The State Application Identifier Number must be placed on any correspondence pertaining to this project. The State
Clearinghouse must be kept informed if the approving authority cannot accommodate the recommendation.

Please remember, you must comply with all applicable state and local laws and regulations. If you need assistance or
have questions, contact the State Clearinghouse staff person noted above at 410-767-4490 or through e-mail at
mbarnes@mdp.state.md.us. Also please complete the attached form and return it to the State Clearinghouse as soon

as the status of the project is known. Any substitutions of this form must include the State Application Identifier
Number. This will ensure that our files are complete.

Martin O'Malley, Governor Richard Eberhart Hall, AICP, Secretary
Anthony G. Brown, Lt. Governor Matthew J. Power, Deputy Secretary

301 West Preston Street - Suite 1101 - Baltimore - Maryland - 21201
Tel: 410.767.4500 - Toll Free: 1.877.767.6272 - TTY users: Maryland Relay - Planning.Maryland.gov



Mr. J. Rodney Little
May 2, 2013

Page 2

State Application Identifier: MD20130318-0161

Thank you for your cooperation with the MIRC process.

Sincerety,

Aeritts (. hrsy Frui

Linda C. Janey, J.D., Assistant Secretary

LCI:MB
Enclosure(s)

cc:  Melinda Gretsinger - MDOT Greg Golden - DNR Jaime Cramer - BCIT Peter Conrad - MDPL

13-0161_CRR.CLS.doc



KEVIN KAMENETZ ANDREA VAN ARSDALE, Director
County Executive Department of Planning

September 19, 2013

Nancy Kurtz
National Register Coordinator
Maryland Historical Trust
100 Community Place
Crownsville, MD 21032
Re: Fort Carroll
Dear Nancy:
Enclosed is the CLG Recommendation Form, signed by Carol Allen, Chairwoman of the

Landmarks Preservation Commission, and by Kevin Kamenetz, the County Executive, expressing

Baltimore County government's support for placing the Fort Carroll on the National Register of

Historic Places.

Please feel free to contact me at (410) 887-3495 or trising@baltimorecountymd.gov with any

questions you may have.

) \.\_" - s .
SNl
. TeriRising
Historic Preservagtion Planner
Baltimore Cotinty Deptartment of Planning

TR:vkn

C: Karin Brown, Dept of Planning

105 West Chesapeake Avenue | Towson, Maryland 21204 | Phone: 410-887-3211 | Fax: 410-887-5862
DRI e i AT BH M ORECOUREY TR S oV | Wb, baltimorecountymd.gov/planning



MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST!

CERTIFIED LOCAL GOVERNMENT
NATIONAL REGISTER RECOMMENDATION FORM

Property name Fort Carroll

Location Sollers Flats, Patapsco River, Curtis Bay 21222

CLG name Baltimore County, Marvland (Landmarks Preservation Commission)

kkkkkhkkdkhkkkhohkkhokkkh

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION’'S RECOMMENDATION

X Nomination recommended Nomination not recommended

National Register criteria (and considerations, if applicable) used by the Commission for the decision:
Criteria: _X___A B_X_C D

Considerations: A B C D E F G ( none applicable)

Justification for the decision:

Fort Carroll is significant under Criterion A for its association with the development of military defenses in the 19th
century. Built as part of the “Third System” of coastal fortifications, these forts helped strengthen existing harbor
defenses that were considered weak after the War of 1812. Fort Carroll derives additional significance under
Criterion C as an example of the United States Corps of Engineer's “state of the art” forts that were built in the mid
19th century to withstand the latest advances in naval technology. The period of significance extends from 1848,
when the construction commenced, to 1923, when it was declared excess by the United States government.

|

Signature of the Chairman of the Landmarks Preservation Commission Date

kokkdkokkkhkhkokkhkohkkkkokkdkok

CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIAL’'S RECOMMENDATION

I concur with the opinion of the Landmarks Preservation Commission.
For the reasons stated on the attached sheet, | do not concur with the opinion of the Landmarks

Preservation, Comission.
/&V\/\/\/ 7M | ‘7;’»/?//5

Signature of the County Executive of Baltimore(ccfunty ! Dafe

WALANDMARKINR Properties & Districts\National Register Properties\BA0451 - FORT CARROLL\Fort Carroll CLG recommendation Form.doc






October 2, 2014

Fort Carroll LLC

9 Gwynns Mill Court

Owings Mills, Maryland 21117
Attention: Mr. Mark J. Eisenberg

RE: FORT CARROLL
Baltimore County, Maryland

Dear Mr. Eisenberg:

The above referenced property was considered by the Governor's Consulting Committee for
nomination to the National Register of Historic Places on Thursday, March 21,2013, The
Committee recommends nomination of the property. The next step in the process involves final
preparation of the application materials by the Trust for submission to the National Register office
in Washington. You will be advised in writing of the decision of the National Register on the
nomination,

Sincerely,

Peter E. Kurtze
Administrator,
Evaluation and Registration

PEK/jmg

cc: Hon. Kevin Kamenetz
Hon. John Olzewski
Mr. Martin Azola
Ms. Helen Rivas
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